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April 30, 2007
Dear Honorable Mayor, Members of City Commission, and Citizens of Kingsville:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Kingsville, Texas (City) for
. the fiscal year ended September 30. 2006, is submitted herewith. . As required by the
TEX. LOCAL GOV’T CODE ANN. § 103.001 et seq., the report includes financial
statements which have been audited by an independent firm -of certified public
accountants, Patrick L. Moore, CPA. The financial statements are presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) and are audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, management of the City has established a.
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the City’s
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
presentation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The goal of the independent audit, conducted by Patrick L. Moore, CPA was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Kingsville for fiscal year
ended September 30, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Kingsville's
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, are fairly presented in
- conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Kingsville’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.



The City is in the process of formulating a Storm Water Drainage Plan to comply with
proposed Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, TCEQ, regulations. The City is
in the process of updating its comprehensive master plan to set consistent design
standards for the City.

Wastewater collection and treatment is provided within the- city limits to more than
26,532 residential, commercial, and industrial customers. The collection system consists
of 94.6 miles of gravity and force mains, 1,381 manholes, and 8 lift stations. The City
owns and operates 2 treatment plants with separate collection basins, with an average
aggregated -daily flow at treatment plants of 1,400,000 gallons per day, or 35% of
aggregate permitted capacity.

In addition to operating the combined utility system, the City also provides garbage
collection and disposal. Garbage collection is primarily limited to residential service,
with phase two of automated garbage collection using specialized equipment initiated in
1995 and City households are now using the garbage rollouts. The City, with its
automated garbage collection program, provides for twice a week garbage pick-up with a
savings of more than $100,000 a year. The City owns and operates a regional waste
disposal facility, also accepting waste from outside of the City and from commercial
garbage haulers. Other public works operations of the City include drainage and street
maintenance, street lighting and traffic signalization/engineering. The City also provides
engineering services to support all public works departments as well as the planning
department. It also provides the City with engineering design for City construction
projects.

Community enrichment and culture services are also major programs of the City. The
City and Kleberg County own and operate a library with over 63,000 volumes. The City
and Kleberg County also own and maintain extensive recreational facilities, which
include 195 acres of parks and playgrounds, one swimming pool, 12 baseball and softball
diamonds, 12 soccer fields, and 2 recreational centers.

Public health, animal control/care, and vector control services are provided by the jointly
operated City of Kingsville/Kleberg County Health Department.

The City of Kingsville has financial accountability for the legally separate Convention
and Visitor's Bureau, which is reported separately within the City of Kingsville’s
financial statements. Additional information on these legally separate entities can be
found in Note 1 of the financial statements. ’

Annual Budget Process

State laws and the City Charter require the preparation and filing of a balanced annual
operating budget. Following a City Manager and department head meeting in May,
departments are required to submit requests to the Finance Department by the first week
of June for the development of the annual operating budget. Under the direction of the
City Manager, the Director of Finance uses these requests to develop a proposed balanced
operating budget for presentation to the City Commission by the beginning of August.
Following a month of budget discussions and deliberations with City Commission, a
public hearing is scheduled for the first week of September and adoption of the budget
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Employment

Although the local unemployment rate remained stable at 4.2% over the last fiscal year,
the number of jobs in the community increased from 13,211 to 13,762. During the same
period, personal income rose from $21,002 to $21,809 or 3.8%.

Diversification of Economy

The region has a varied manufacturing, agricultural and petrochemical base that adds to
the relative stability of employment. Major industries located within the City’s
boundaries, or in close proximity, include industrial, construction, fast food restaurants,
convenience stores, banking, and financial services.

The federal government also has a major presence within the area with three bases that
make up the south Texas military complex: Naval Air Station — Kingsville (jet aviation
training), Naval Air Station — Corpus Christi, and Naval Station — Ingleside (base for the
Navy’s mine warfare fleet).

The City of Kingsville’s trade area consists of three counties: Kleberg, Nueces and Jim
Wells. Fach of these counties maintains a solid and diversified economic base which
contributes material support to the City of Kingsville due to its location as a regional
trade center. The City of Kingsville’s economy provides a diversified product market
including metal fabrication, chemical processing, farm and ranch equipment, cement, and
petrochemical products, fishing and seafood products and more.

The land in the City of Kingsville region has strong mineral deposits, rich soil and
excellent climate, with the principle crops being grain, sorghum, and cotton. The region
produces a large supply of livestock including cattle, hogs, and poultry. The oil and gas
industry is a major factor in the growth and stability within the trade area. This industry
provides a secondary market for petroleum by-products and chemicals.

Transportation

A primary component of the City’s transportation system is the 2,428-acre Corpus Christi
International Airport, which is only 45 minutes from the City. Currently, the Airport is
served by a total of 30 daily flights from four major domestic carriers that use the
Airport’s 7,500 and 6,080 foot lighted runways. The Airport is completed the finishing
touches on its new terminal building and a new covered parking lot and concession area
in 2006. Additionally, airport safety has been enhanced through a multi-jurisdictional
cooperative effort with other civil and military law enforcement agencies.

The City is also served by a network of major highways. U.S. Highway 77 links the City
of Kingsville to both the Rio Grande Valley/Mexico to the south and Victoria (which
then provides a direct connect to U.S. 59 and Houston). State Highway 44 and US.
Highway 59 also link the City of Kingsville to Laredo/Mexico from U.S. Highway 77 at
Robstown and Victoria. All highways are four-lane roads and are maintained at interstate
or near interstate standards. Seventeen separate motor carriers serve the City of
Kingsville for truck transport of products to market. Rail service to and from the City of
Kingsville is provided by the Burlington Northern/Santa Fe Railway, Texas Mexican
Railway and Union Pacific Railroad.



three phases. Upon completion, the subdivision will have a total of 175 single-family
units. Two commercial sites are also planned for this area.

Collegiate Station located near Texas A&M University-Kingsville, and additional
complex for college students, started construction in July 2005. Phase I of this project
consists of 132 units, 360 beds and 204 bedroom units. The projects will consist of three
phases with the last phase being completed in 2010.

Other residential projects include: (1) the development of Santa Gertrudis Arroyo Estates,
a 16 unit single-family residential subdivision is under construction; (2) the development
of Las Palmas del Rey, a 24 unit single-family residential subdivisions is ongoing; (3)
Construction has begun on Victoriana Country Estates which is located on FM-1717. The
development consists of 8 single-family residences.

In 2006, a total of 51 new housing permits were issued.

Tourism

The City of Kingsville continues to be a favorite stop-over for vacationers, tourists,
hunters and outdoorsman with the historic King Ranch, the City’s historic downtown
area, twWo museums, various bays that are ideal for fishing and numerous hunting leases
that surround the city.

Financing of Major Capital Projects

During the 2006 fiscal year, the City continued to utilize the two bond issues from the
previous fiscal year to fund projects and capital assets planned and approved during the
past fiscal year. These are major initiatives that represent a significant long term
commitment to revitalization strategies that support commercial and industrial growth
and improved quality of life for current residents.

Cash Management

The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) requires quarterly reporting to the governing
body by its investment officers. The City Commission adopts the investment policy with
any recommended amendments annually. In addition to PFIA requirements, the City’s
Investment Committee requires quarterly reporting on investment results.

The City pools its cash balances for investment purposes. A primary objective of the
City’s investment program is to protect the principal through proper collateralization.
The City depository holds all funds in various MBIA investment pool accounts with the
exception of minimum operating funds held in the local depository bank that must be
held separately. The bank performs all normal banking functions for the City, as well as,
collateralizing deposits with government. securities. The interest rate is variable being
0.5% less than the 13-week T-Bill rate. The City’s cash management policy is adopted
by the City Commission and strictly defines the parameters by which City investments
are made.

The annual average interest rate was 4.63% and the total interest earned was $846,858 in
the City’s bank depository and all investments.



CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements

City Commission

City of Kingsville

P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364

Members of the City Commission:

[ have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Kingsville as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of City of Kingsville's management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides

a reasonable basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kingsville as of
September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

In accordance with GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, | have also issued my report dated April 20, 2007,
on my consideration of City of Kingsvilie's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the

results of my audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information identified as Required
Supplementary Information in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. | have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted. principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,

| did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Kingsville’s (City) annual financial report presents
management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the City’s financial performance
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. The MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the transmittal letter found in the Introductory Section of this report and
the City’s Financial Statements which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $17 million.

e The fund balance of the General Fund increased from $5.6 million to $7.0
million. This represents a 24% increase OVer the prior year’s fund balance, and
furthermore, represents 58% of the $12 million in expenditures. The General
Fund’s undesignated and unreserved fund balance was $3.4 million, or 28% of
expenditures.

e Total assets, excluding component units, were $50 million; total liabilities,
excluding component units, were $33 million.

e The ratio of total assets to total liabilities for governmental activities was 1.76
times; for business-type activities the ratio was 1.37 times.

e The quick ratio (current assets to current liabilities) was 1.79 times for
governmental activities and 6.45 times for business-type activities.

e Total net assets were $17.2 million, which was an increase from $14.1 million for
the prior year (after a prior period adjustment), or 22%. Governmental activities’
net assets increased by 19%, while business-type activities net assets increased by
26%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of: management discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, and supplementary information. Figure A-1 demonstrates the
relationships among the components of this annual report.

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

e The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term
information about the City’s overall financial status. These statements are
presented for both governmental activities and business-type activities. They are
designed to provide readers with 2 broad overview of the City’s finances, similar
to a private-sector business. - A legally separate component unit (Kingsville
Convention and Visitors Bureau) are also shown in these statements.

o The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may SEIve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.
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Figure A-1: Required Components of the City’s Annual Financial Report

A

4 I
Management's Basic Required

Discussion Financial Supplementary

And Analysis Statements Information

L v
L 2

Government-wide Fund Notes to the

Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Summaryv < ; > Detail

Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual financial report are arranged and
relate to one another. In addition to these required elements, a section with combining
statements that provides details about the non-major governmental funds and internal
service funds is included.

More about the City’s Fund Financial Statements:

‘Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities except that the Solid Waste Activity is reported as a business-
type activity in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

16



Table A-1: Net Assets for Governmental and Business-type Activities
at September 30, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands of dollars)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Current & other assets $ 11,555 § 8,514 $ 13,842 § 16,760 25397 § 25274
Capital assets 12,885 13,174 11,750 7,883 24,635 21,057

Total assets 24,440 21,688 25,592 24,643 50,032 46,331
Long-term liabilities 7.424 8,256 16,871 18,754 24,295 27,010
Other liabilities 6,425 4,204 2,118 1,236 8,543 5,440

Total liabilities 13,849 12,460 18,989 19,990 32,838 32,450

Net assets § 10,591 § 9,228 $ 6603 § 4,653 17.194  § 13,881

Net assets
Invested in capital assets

net of related debt 7,191 ,752 4,315 (8,284) 11,506 (5,959)
Restricted 2,315 2,325 2,174 14,846 4,489 15,997
Unrestricted 1,085 ,151 114 (1,909) 1,199 (758)

Total net assets $ 10,591 § 9228 § 6,603 $ 4,653 17,194 § 13.881

The City has sufficient funds to meet requirements for cash outlays in the next fiscal year
as well as the financial capacity to meet its long-term obligations, without any reduction

of fund balances or net assets.

The Combined Utility System net assets were $6.4 million, which is 37% of total net
assets and is $1.4 million more than the prior year. The Combined Utility System
contributed all of total unrestricted business-type net assets.
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Governmental Activities

As shown in Table A-2, revenues were split between governmental activities and
business-type activities 56% and 44%, respectively, with expenses for each at 66% and
34%. Net assets increased 15% from the prior period for governmental activities (net of a
negative $314 thousand prior period adjustment), increased 42% for business-type
activities (also, net of a positive $580 thousand prior period adjustment), and increased
24% overall.

The cost of all governmental activities for the fiscal year 2006 was $13 million.
However, the amount that taxpayers paid for these services through City taxes and
business fees was $9 million.
Some of the cost was paid by:

o Those who directly benefited from the programs ($2.7 million), and

o Other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs

with grants and contributions ($778 thousand).

Charges for services comprised 22% of governmental activities and 93% of
business-type activities’ revenues.
Taxes contributed 71% of governmental activities revenues. Investment earnings,
with interest rates at slowly climbing from historic lows, generated 1.3% and 6%
of governmental activities revenues and business-type activities, respectively.
Public Safety (including Police, Fire, Emergency Management, Municipal Court,
and Inspections) expenses accounted for 53% of governmental activities and 20%
of total expenses were for public works.
Public Safety required the largest net amount of public funds after deducting
program revenue, grants, and contributions. The total subsidy was $2.3 million.
General government comprises 18% of all governmental activities’ expenses.

Graph 1 presents the cost of each of the City’s major governmental functions, as well as
the associated program revenues. As expected in governmental activities, the subsidy
required from taxpayers provides the majority support to these core services.



- Revenues of the City’s business-type activities are associated with operating activities
accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. Solid Waste activities are recorded in the General
Fund but are shown in the government-wide statement as a business-type activity.

The Combined Utilities System accounted for 71% of the expenses generated for
business-type activities, with solid waste accounting for an additional 29%. It had
operating revenues of $6.6 million, operating income of $2.3 million, and income before
transfers of $2.4 million, with income after transfers of $1.1 million for the fiscal year.
Compared to the 2005 fiscal year, the System’s: operating revenues were up by $865
thousand, the operating income was up by $1.2 million, and net income after transfers
was $1.1 million higher. The major causes of these results were:

e Increased operating revenues are largely the result of a 25% increase in
wastewater revenues, and a 10% increase in water revenue, over the preceding
year.

o The operating expenses decreased by over $300 thousand primarily due to lower
wage costs and service expenses.

e Wastewater fund revenue was up $508 thousand, because rates were increased at
the beginning of 2005, and the fiscal year ended 2006 reflects the first full year
for those rate increases to be in effect. '

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

e Total assets of the General Fund increased from $8.2 million to $10.3 million
between 2005 and 2006.

e Total liabilities of the General Fund rose by $715 thousand to approximately $3.3
million, a 28% increase. This brings the quick ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) to 3.11 times in 2006 from 3.17 times in 2005.

e General Fund revenues are $1 million above the final budget.

e General Fund expenditures are $34 thousand above the final budget.

e The General Fund’s unreserved and undesignated fund balance increased $752
thousand to $3.4 million from fiscal 2005.

e The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund increased from $108 thousand to
$274 thousand. This fund balance is structured to minimize the balance being

carried to no more than required for the cash flow necessary to service the City’s
debt.

Budgetary Results of the General Fund :

General fund taxes and business fees were slightly over $7.7 million, which was 3461
thousand above the final budget. Charges for services, including zoning fees, solid waste
fees, health service fees, and other fees were higher than the final budget by $336

thousand. Overall General Fund revenues were $1.0 million more than the final budget.
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Other than the $249 thousand increase in the landfill closure cost liability and the $140
thousand increase in the compensated absence liability, the overall decrease in long-term

debt can be attributed to reductions in certificates of obligation

(Combined Utility System) through scheduled principal payments.

bonds and revenue bonds

The 2005-2006 tax rate was $0.45633 for the General Fund and $0.25367 for the Debt
Service Fund, totaling $0.71 per $100 of assessed value. Therefore, the City’s tax margin
of $1.79 per $100 of assessed value could increase taxes $9.8 million each year based on
the assessed value of $547,382,940. A brief discussion of the ad valorem tax limitations
of the Constitution of the State of Texas and the City Charter are found in Note B, Item

#3b of the Financial Statements.

Table A-4: Long-Term Liabilities at September 30, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands of dollars)

Governmental %
Activities Business Activities Total Change
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 05-06
Combined tax & revenue
certificates of obligation ~ § 0 S 0 s N 0 3 0% 0 N/A

Certificates of obligation 7.273 7,408 13,897 15.042 21,170 22,450 -5.70%
Capital Leases 0 14 0 0 0 14 -100.00%
Revenue bonds payable 0 0 990 1,125 990 1,125 -12.00%

Total debt 7.273 7,422 14,887 16,167 22,160 23,589 -6.06%
Compensated absences 965 834 85 76 1,050 910 15.38%
Landfill closure cost -- - 2,759 2.510 2,759 2,510 9.92%

Total long-term debt  § 8238 § 823 § 17731 $ 18753 § 25,969 §_27.009 -3.85%

e s
P ——————— R S )

Bond Ratings

The City received a general obligation bon

— LSS

insurance policy issued by MBIA (Moody’s), with an underlying rate of A3.

d rating of Aaa based on a municipal bond

The Utility System revenue bonds were rated in June 1994 as Baa 1 by Moody’s, and

BBB + by Standard & Poor’s.






CITY OF KINGSVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Accounts
Internal Balances
Due from other governments
Inventory, at cost
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Accounts
Long-term assets:
Bond issuance costs
Capital Assets
. Total Agsets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Bank overdraft

Accrued wages payable

Payable from restricted assets:
Bank overdraft
Accrued interest payable
Revenue bonds
Customer deposits

Due to:
Other governments
Others

Unearned revenues

Liabilities due within one year:
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences
Revenue bonds payable

Liabilities due beyond one year:
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences
Contractual obligations payable
Revenue bonds payable
Landfill closure costs

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Municipal Court Technology

Landfill Closure
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Primary Government

EARIDIE A

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
$ 3,368,951 $ 1,480,050 % 4849001 § 65,492
2,667,511 1,710,705 4,378,216 -
1,319,654 - 1,319,654 -
68,109 1,400,110 1,468,219 --

(143,435) 143,435 - -
350,945 191,664 542,609 43,000
182,305 120,307 302,612 --

3,670,055 7,594,490 11,264,545 --
49,416 951,596 1,001,012 --

31 68,694 68,725 --

21,174 181,199 202,373 -
12,885,218 11,750,162 24,635,380 -

439934 25582412 . 50032346 108,482

871,540 471,200 1,342,740 4,154
2,402,981 - 2,402,981 --
187,074 26,838 213,912 -
1,153,893 - 1,153,893 -
52,153 124,662 176,815 -

- 860,000 860,000 --
697,155 633,376 1,330,531 -
177,727 1,777 179,504 -

26,819 - 26,819 -
42,420 - 42,420 -
173,816 - 173,816 -
640,000 - 640,000 -
790,670 85,435 876,105 -
6,633,000 1,495,000 8,128,000 -
- 12,532,000 12,532,000 -
- 2,758,949 2,758,949 -
13,849,248 18,989,237 32,838,485 4,154
7,190,499 4,315,474 11,505,973 -
863,380 92,031 955,411 -
1,434,852 - 1,434,852 -
16,543 - 16,543 -
- 2,082,267 2,082,267 -
1,085,412 113,403 1,198,815 104,338
g 10500886 3 5603475, o%. 17193861 % . 104338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type : Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
$ (2,045,764) (2,045,764)
(4,468,066) (4,468,066)
(1,928,944) (1,928,944)
(641,494) (641,494)
(300,163) (300,163)
(9,384,431) (9,384,431)
- $ 560,330 560,330
- 893,561 893,561
-- 1,243,744 1,243,744
- 2,697,635 2,697,635
(9,384,431) 2,697,635 (6,686,796)
4,487
4,112,188 - 4,112,188 -
3,795,341 - 3,795,341 -
1,012,220 - 1,012,220 -
3,612 - 3,612 -
35,571 - 35,571 -
170,314 603,158 773,472 -
(30,052) 30,775 723 -
1,961,699 (1,961,699) - -
11,060,893 (1,327,766) 9,733,127 -
17662 T 1,369,869 048331
9,228,147 4,653,277 ,881,424
(313,923) 580,029 266,106 -
$ 10,590,686 § 6,603,175 $ 17,193,861 104,338

28

EXHIBIT A-Z



EXHIBIT A-3

Debt Other . Total
. Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

$ - $ - $ 3,681,036
- 125,148 2,754,194

22,753 22,198 1,319,654
- - 547,978
- - 153,734
- - 319,620

45,009 - 287,944
- 70,278 350,945
- - 182,305

354,807 501,582 3,805,338
- - 462,021
68,725
13,933,484

$ -- $ - $ 714,168
123,606 35,088 1,628,613
- , - 187,074
- ' - 1,153,893
- - 560,089
2,197 157,885 636,204
- 134,833 177,727
- - 26,819
22,752 38,778 924,078
148,555 366,584 ’ 6,008,665
- - 197,631
- - 2,082,267
274,014 - 274,014
- 343,697 1,586,855
- - 45,149
- - 9,331
- . 8,925 3,729,582
274,014 352,622 7,924,829
$ TH9206 08 18933494

30



CITY OF KINGSVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest and miscellaneous
Donations
Federal and state grants

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government and administration
Public Safety
Public works
City/County
Tourism
Other expenses
Debt service:
Principal retired
Interest
Paying agent fees
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balgnces/quity, Oc;tober 1
Fund balances/equity, September 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

8,972,847

General
Fund

7,557,941
172,814
3,211,482
466,676
208,317
2,890

753

11,620,873

2,383,023
5,525,114
3,454,357

655,411

2,532

12,020,437

(399,564)

1,338,041
(37,183)
450,000

1,750,858

1,351,294

5,621,553

Police
Forfeiture
Fund

$ -

1,376,522
25,099

1,401,621

4,817
1,051,185

1,056,002
345,619
(50.,858)
(50,858)
294,761

30,585
T ap5340



Debt
Service
Fund

$ 1,430,116

23,777

TR

910,000
376,031
2,250

T TaBBa8T

165,612

165,612

108,402

$

Other
Governmental
Funds

290,697

802
25,007

173,383

1

10,206
127,619
106,991

290,697

53518

(45,624)

(45,624)

'398,24
3525
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EXHIBIT A-5

Total
Govermnmental
Funds

$ 9,278,754
172,814
3,211,482
1,844,000

282,200

2,890
_i7aas
_ 14966.276

2,398,046
6,703,918
3,561,348
655,411
290,697
2,532

910,000

376,031
2250
14900233

66,043
1,338,041
(88,041)
450000
— 1700000
1,766,043

6158785
TITETOP4 829

RS




CITY OF KINGSVILLE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006
Nonmajor
Enterprise internal Service
Fund Fund
Utility Insurance
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 1,167,965
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 1,625,761 -
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncoliectibles):
Accounts 947,105 -
Due from:

Cther funds: 238,670 204,825

Cther governments: 191,664 -
Inventory, at cost 120,307 -
Restricted assets - noncurrent;

Cash and cash equivalents 7,459,208 -

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivaients 538,991 -

Total current assets 11,121,706 1,372,790
Noncurrent assets:

Bond issuance COStS 181,198 -~
Capital assets:

Land 132,354 -

Utility plant 24,212,472 -

Equipment 1,214,928 -

Furniture and fixtwes 8,300 -

Vehicles 1,602,560 -
Construction in progress 4,358,704 -
Total capital assets 31,529,318 -
Less accumulated depreciation (21,935,149) -
Net capital assets 9,594,169 -

Total noncurrent assets 9,775,368 -

Total Assets CeTTT 30897074 7§ 1,372,790,
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 471,200 $ 157,372
Bank overdraft - 774,358
Accrued wages payable 26,838 -
Due to:

Other funds 95,235 -

Cther governments 1,777 -
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 85,435 -
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Accrued interest payable 112,296 -

Revenue bonds 525,000 -

Customer deposits 633,376 137,066

Total current liabilities 1,951,157 1,068,806
Long-term liabilities, net of current portion
Revenue bonds payable 12,532,000 -

Total long-term liabilities, net of current portion 12,532,000 -

Total Liabilities 14,483,157 1,068,806
Net Assets:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,989,482 -
Restricted for: )

Debt service 233,248 -

Self insurance ) - 303,984
Unrestricted 2,191,187 -

Tatai net assets 6,413,917 303,984

- TotarLiabilities and Net Assets .

Gei§ 20,897,074 S 1,372790

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water
Other income
Wastewater
Insurance premiums
Federal Revenue
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Water supply contract
Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest
Gain or loss on sale of property
Interest and fiscal agent charge
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) before Transfers
TRANSFERS IN (OUT):
To General Fund
Total Transfers In (Out)
Net income (loss)
Net assets, October 1

Prior period adjustment
NEt assets, September 30 co

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise
Fund

Utility
Fund

4,026,953
498
2,578,493
28,441
6,634,385

1,525,636
206,218
1,070,704
325,929
353,725
805347
4,287,559

2,346,826
538,574
55,548
(585,460)
8,662
2,355,488
(1,250,000)
(1,250,000)
1,105,488

5,118,742
189,687

$.6,413,937
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Nonmajor
Intemal Service
Fund

Insurance
Fund

$ -
30,444

1,627,597

1,658,041

1,365,164

1,365,164

292,877

292,877

292,877

11,107

CAFIDI A-0



CITY OF KINGSVILLE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Receipts (Payments) for Interfund
Services Provided and Used
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Claims
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Actlvities:
Proceeds (Payments) from (for) Interfund Borrowings
Transfers From (To) Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal and Interest Paid
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Other
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities

Cash Fiows from Investing Activities:
Interest and Dividends on Investments
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase) in Due from Other Govermnments
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise
Fund
Utility
Fund

$ 6,503,844

(1,517,695)
(1,794,562)

3,191,587

17,704
(1,250,000)
(1,232,296)

(1,547,530)
(4,288,223)
60,000
8,300
(5.767,453)

538,574

PR g

538,574

(3,269,588)
12,893,548
§___ 9,623,060

$ 2,346,826

805,347

(112,268)
(11,999)
(38,618)
162,014

7,941

32,344

844,761
$ 3,191,587

EXHIBI A-Y

Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Insurance
Fund

$ -

2,013,704

(1,344,232)
669,472

669,472
(275,875)

USSR SRS R

$ 393,597

3 292,877

10,907

20,932

344,756

376,595
$ 669,472




CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

A.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Kingsville (the City) was incorporated in 1911. In 1916, the City was organized under a Home Rule City
Charter and a commission form of government was adopted. The charter was amended in 1986, and the present
Council-Manager form of government was adopted. The principal services accounted for as general governmental
functions include public safety, health, streets, sanitation, parks and recreation, planning, zoning, and general
administrative services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principals in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for govemmental accounting and financial
reporting.  Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989
are not applied in the preparation  of the financial statements of the proprietary fund types in accordance with an
election made by the City under GASB Statement No. 20. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB

pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are
discussed in subsequent sections of these Notes. The remainder of the Notes is organized to provide explanations,
including required disclosures, on the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.

1.  Reporting Entity

The City of Kingsville was incorporated in 1911 and adopted its first charter in 1916 as a home rule city under the
provisions of Chapter 13 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Texas. The City operates under a
Commission-Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter (last
amended August 9, 1986) public safety (police and fire), streets and sidewalks, sanitation, health and social services,
parks and recreation, public improvements, and general administrative services.

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential
component units. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present

" the City and should include any entities for which the City is considered financially accountable.  Blended
component units, although legally seperate entities in substance, are part of the City operations and data from these
units should be combined with data of the City. On the other hand, the discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City.

1. Blended Component Units
The City did not have a Blended Component Unit at September 30, 2006.
2. Discretely Presented Component Unit
The Kingsville Convention and Visitor's Bureau (K.CV.B)) is a non-profit corporation created by the City under
State law to facilitate the development of tourism for the City. The City Council appoints all members of the
board, approves the appoinment of all managerial employees and approves the budget. The City maintains its
tourism contract with the K.C.V.B. on a yearly basis which is the K.C.V.B.'s only source of income. Therefore, the
City has financial accountability. The financial data of the K.C.V.B. is presented in the component unit columns
in the combined financial statements.
Complete financial statements for the component unit may be obtained at the entity's administrative offices.

Kingsville Convention & Visitor's Bureau

P.O. Box 1562
Kingsville, Texas 78363
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Those revenues considered susceptible-to-accrual are property taxes, hotel occupancy taxes, special
assessments, interest income, and charges for services. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment
earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the
extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisiions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

3. Financial Statement Amounts
a. Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash balances of all City funds are pooled and invested. At year-end, negative balances of individual
funds which result from pooling cash, are reclassified to interfund payable in the financial statements.
Investments purchased with pooled cash consisting of certificates of deposit and obligations of the U.S.
Govemnement and its agencies or instrumentalities, are recorded at cost, which approximates estimated
market value. Cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying combined balance sheets, includes
amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three months
of the date acquired by the City. ’

b. Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The City's property tax is
levied each October 1 on the basis of assessed value at the date the enforceable lien attaches.
Appraised values are established by the Kleberg County Appraisal Board, assessed at 100% of
appraised value, approved by the Kleberg County Appraisal Review Board and certified by the Chief
Appraiser.  Responsibility for the billing and collection of the City's taxes has been transferred to
Kleberg County as a cost-cutting measure in consolidating government functions.

Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinguent if not paid before February of the vyear
following the year in which imposed. Taxes become delinquent at February 1, at which time penalties
and interest charges are applicable. Property tax revenues are recorded as revenues when they become
available. At September 30, property tax receivables are fully deferred because collections received
within the following sixty days are inmaterial. '

The City operates under the Laws of the State of Texas as a Home Rule City, and is limited to a total
tax rate of $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation. Neither the State law nor the City Charter limits the
proportion of this total tax rate which may be applied to debt service.

In order to obtain approval of its general obligation bonds by the Attorney General of the State, a
satisfactory showing of adequate taxing power must be made. As a general rule the Attorney General
will not approve new bonds if this will make the net debt exceed twenty-five percent of the assessed
value. The 2005 tax rate was $.71000 of which $.45640 was distributed to the General Fund and
$.25630 was applied to the Debt Service Fund. Using the twenty-five percent rule, the City's legal
margin is $127,520,560.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon historical
experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed
and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory
authority from the Texas Legislature.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing resources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures in the
governmental funds, bond discounts and issuance costs are treated as period costs in the year
issued. Bond issuance costs are shown as an "other financing use.”

h. Pension Plans

It is the policy of the City to fund pensions costs annually. Pension costs are composed of normal cost
and, where applicable, amortization of unfunded acturial accrued liability and unfunded prior service
costs.

i. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropnration or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific
purpose.  Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change. '

- Accumulated Unpaid Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
penefits. These compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. Expenses are recorded in the governmental funds as employees
resign or retire. Compensated absence liabilities are normally paid from the funds reporting payroll and
related expenditures including the general fund and special revenue funds.

K. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds.
loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are
treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a
cost, charges the appropriate benefitting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and
presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly,
interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances” line of
the government-wide statement of net assets.

B, C i | £ ity
1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of
finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address

such violations:

Violation_ Action Taken.
None reported Not applicable
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

The cash deposits held at financial institutions can be collateralized according to three levels of risk. These
three levels of risk are as follows:

Category1 - Deposits which are insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in the
City's name.
Category2 - Deposits which are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust

department or agent in the City's name.
Category3 - Deposits which are not collateralized or insured.
Based on these three levels of risk, all of the City's cash deposits are classified as Category 2.
2. Investments

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act") requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in
this area conducted as a part of the audit of the financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment
practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements
of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policies.

The City's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning
investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-eaming investment contracts
using a cost-based measure. However, i the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the
impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other
investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term
"short-term” refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The
term “nonparticipating” means that the investments value does not vary with market interest rate changes.
Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-eaming investment contracts.

Public Funds investment pools in Texas ("Pools”) are established under the authority of the Interiocal
Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Public
Funds Investment Act (the"Act"), Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition to other provisions
of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to : 1) have an advisory
board composed of participants in the pool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with the
pool and are gualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or
an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and 3) maintain the market value of
its underlying investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the value of its shares.

The City's investments in pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair market value per share of the
pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is a 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A
2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities & Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an
investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with
the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Reported Fair
Investment - Amount Value
MBIA (Rated @ AAA/V1+) 3 13,827,811 § 13,827,811
Agency Notes/Bonds 3,826,000 3,826,000

$ 17,653,811 17,653,811
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006, was

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ‘ $
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Road Network
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicies
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Road Network
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net $

(1) As restated, see Note u.

i ~ .

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
" Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net $

(1) As restated see note U.

as follows:
9/30/05 Ending
Restated (1) Increases Decreases Balances
469,540 $ - $ - $ 469,540
469,540 - -- 469,540
17,735,769 832,382 - 18,568,151
3,652,501 - - 3,652,501
2,294,585 105,179 130,277 2,269,487
3,238,132 201,137 250,868 3,188,401
26,920,987 1,138,698 381,145 27,678,540
(9,317,734) 513,793 9,831,528
(187,231,571) 61,763 - 1,934,079
(1,191,280) 228,808 12,432 1,295,764
(25,149,584) 270,676 218,769 2,201,491
(14,530,914) 1,075,040 231,201 15,262,862
12,390,073 - - 12,415,678
12,869,613 $ - $ - $ 12,885,218
Beginning Ending
Balances (1) Increases Decreases Balances
352,354 § - $ - $ 352,354
485,274 4,257,401 383,972 4,358,703
837,628 4,257,401 383,972 4,711,057
24,657,953 426,540 49,218 25,035,275
2,745,427 32,683 190,587 2,587,522
3,275,888 - 157,776 3,118,112
30,679,268 459,223 397,581 30,740,909
19,377,279 627,891 28,491 19,976,679
1,657,738 160,017 182,089 1,635,666
2,019,119 228,117 157,776 2,089,460
23,054,136 1,016,025 368,356 23,701,805
7,625,133 (556,803) 29,226 7,039,105
8,462,761 $ 3,700,598 § 413,198 $ 11,750,162
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

H.  Long-Term Obligations

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended

September 30, 2008, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases(2) Decreases Balance One Year
- e
Certificates of obligation 3 7,408,000 § 450,000 $ 585,000 § 7,273,000 $ 640,000
Capital leases 13,886 -- 13,886 - --
Total long-term debt 7,421,886 450,000 598,886 7,273,000 640,000
Accumulated compensated
absences™ 834,106 130,380 - 964,486 173,816
Governmental activity
Total long-term debt $ 8,255,992 § 580,380 § 598,886 $ 8,237,486 § 813,816
Revenue bonds-payable $ 1,125,000 $ - $ 135,000 $ 990,000 $ 145,000
Certificates of obligation (1) 15,042,000 - 1,145,000 13,897,000 715,000
Total long-term debt 16,167,000 - 1,280,000 14,887,000 860,000
Landfill closure cost 2,509,812 249,137 - 2,758,949 -
Accumulated compensated
absences® 76,471 8,964 - 85,435 -
Business-type activities
Long-term liabilities $ 18,753,283 § 258,101 § 1,280,000 § 17,731,384 $ 860,000

(1) The utility funds share of the new issues of CO in conjunction with the general fund.

(2) The $450,000 bond increase is the result of the General Fund assuming $450,000 of the Utility Fund portion
of the Certificate of Obligation 2002A. The General Fund also received the related $450,000 cash proceeds of

the bond issue.
* Other long-term liabilities

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental  General Fund
Compensated absences Business-type  Utility Fund
Revenue bonds payable: 2006

$2.000,000 Utility System Revenue Bonds
Series 1995; due in annual installments of
$145,000 to $190,000 through April 1, 2012;
interest at 3.95% to 5.8%. $ 990,000

Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 990,000

51

2005

§__ 1250000

5___1.250000



CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Business-type Activities

Certificates of Obligation Revenue Bonds

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2007 $ 715,000 $ 575,351 § 145,000 $ 56,593 § 1,491,944
2008 635,000 552,348 150,000 48,547 1,385,896
2009 665,000 529,433 155,000 40,070 1,389,503
2010 685,000 505,118 170,000 31,235 1,391,353
2011 707,000 479,710 180,000 21,460 1,388,170
2012-2016 2,905,000 2,073,461 190,000 11,020 5,179,481
2017-2021 3,860,000 1,320,900 - - 5,180,900
2022-2028 3,725,000 420,988 - - 4,145,988
Totals 3 13,897,000 $ 6,457,310 § 990,000 $ 208,925 § 21,553,235

Pension Plan
1.  Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees, except for its voluntary firefighters who
are covered under a separate plan, through a nontraditional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan in the
state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of 811 administered by TMRS, an agent
multiple-empioyer pubiic employee retirement system. .

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the
city-financed monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits
for service rendered before the plan began of the theoretical amount equal to two times what would have
been contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for
service since the plan began are a percent (100%) of the employee's accumulated contributions.. In
addition, the City can grant as often as annually, another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated
service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's accumuiated
contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the total monetary credits
and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee contribution rate and City
matching percent had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had always been the average
of his salary in the last three years that are one year before the effective date. At retirement, the benefit is
calculated as if the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions  with  interest and the
employer-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes. Plan provisions for the City were as follows
(as of 4/7/06):

Deposit Rate: 7.0%
Matching Ratio (City to Employee): 1 1/2-1
A member is vested after 5yrs

Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City.
The Service Retirement Eligibilites for the city are: 5 yrs/age 60, 20 yrs/any age
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Net Pension Obligation (NPOQ) at the Beginning of Period $ --
Annual Pension Cost:
Annual reguired contribution (ARC) $ 729,018

Interest in NPO --

Adjustment to the ARC - $ 729,018

Contributions Made 3 729,018
Increase in NPO -

NPO at the end of the period S -
; ial 2 .

The actuarial cost method and significant assumption underlying the actuarial calculations are as follows:

Actuarial Cost Method - Unit Credit
Amortization Method- Level Percent of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Period - 25 Years - Open Period
Asset Valuation Method- Amortized Cost (to accurately reflect the requirements
: of GASB Stmt, No. 25 p. 36e and 138)
Investment Rate of Return - 7%
Projected Salary Increase - None
Includes Inflation At - i 3.5%
Cost-of-living Adjustments - None

Financial reports that include financial statements and supplementary information for each plan are publicly
available at the locations shown below:

Plan Address

Texas Municipal Retirement System P. O. Box 148153
Austin, TX 78414-9153

2. Texas Statewide Emergency Services Personnel Retirement Fund
Plan -

The Fire Fighters' Pension Commissioner is the administrator of the Texas Statewide Emergency Services
Personnel -Retrement Fund, a cost-sharing muitiple employer pension system established and administered
by the State of Texas to provide pension benefits for emergency services personnel who serve without
monetary  renumeration. The Texas Statewide Emergency Services personnel Retirement Fund s
considered a component unit of the State of Texas financial reporting entity and is included in the State's
financial reports as a pension trust fund. At August 31, 2006 there were 181 member departments
participating in the pension system.

The table below summarizes the pension system membership of the City as of August 31, 2006:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently reéeiving benefits ' 20
Terminated members entitied to benefits but not yet receiving them N/A™
Current active members (vested and nonvested) 21

* N/A "Not Available”
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Financial reports that include financial statements and supplementary information ‘for each plan are
publicly available at the locations shown below. i

Plan Address

Fire Fighters' Retirement System P.Q. Box 12577
Austin, TX 78711

3.  City of Kingsville Deferred Compensation Plan Restatement
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 32,  “"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code," Section 457, Deferred Compensation Plans, the Plans were amended in 1998 as the

assets are held in trust to meet the Internal Revenue Service requirements.

The City does not have significant administrative involvement in the assets of its plan nor does it perform any
investment function for the plan. Therefore, the plan is not presented as part of the City's Financial Statements.

J.  Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City provides healthcare benefits to
eligible former employees and eligible dependents.  Certain requirements are outlined by the federal govemment
for this coverage. The premium plus a 20;  administration fee is paid in full by the insured on or before
the tenth (10th) day of the month for the actual month covered. This program is offered for a duration of 18 to 25
months, as applicable, after the termination date. There is no associated cost to the City under this program,

and there are only two participants in the program as of September 30, 2006.
K. Commitments and Confingencies

1.  Contingencies
The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

2.  Litigation
No reportable litigation was pending against the City at September 30,2006.

L. Budgetary Data
Budget amendements approved during the year included the following:
$46,800 total amendments to the General Fund. This was comprised primarily of $16,000, $28,000, and

$2.300 for services, roof repairs, and health insurance for the city commission, city hall, and all
departments, respectively.
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b. Each Contract Year the Authority may adjust the Handling Charge to cover reasonable increases in the.
Authority's expenses and to accumulate and maintain a reasonable amount of reserve funds, provided
that the increase in any one Contract Year may not exceed 5% of the above stated initial Handling
Charge and that the total reserve funds of the Authority reasonably projected at its maximum during any
Fiscal Year shall not exceed $1.171 million. If the actual or projected reserve exceeds $1.171 million,
the Handling Charge shall be reduced accordingly for the next Contract year.

c. The adjustment in the Handling Charge may exceed an increase of 5% in any Contract Year if the
Authority obtains prior written approval of Customers representing in the aggregate not less than 75% of
the water purchased from the Authority during its preceding Fiscal Year.

d. Notice of a change in Handling Charge shall be delivered to the City on or before the 10th day of
August of each Contract Year. The notice shall state the amount of the new Charge and the reason and
calculations for the adjustment. The new Handling Charge shall be effective  commencing at the
beginning of the next Contract Year.

e. The City may object to the Handling Charge for any Contract Year after the initial Year by delivering
to the Authority a notice stating the nature of the City's objection to the Charge. The objection shall be
resolved by following the dispute resolution procedures established in the contract. If the dispute is not
resolved by the beginning of the subject contract Year, the Clty shall pay at the new rate until the
dispute is resolved. The Handling Charge determined through the dispute resolution procedure shall be
effective as the beginning of that Contract Year unless otherwise agreed by the parties.

f. Any change in the Handling Charge, by ‘agreement, dispute resolution, or otherwise shall apply to all
Customers of the Authority, in accordance with the contract. .

g. At the end of the term of this Contract, the City may reguest a retroactive adjustment in the price of
water delivered in the last year of the Contract if the Authority's reserve fund exceeds $1.171 milllon on
the last day of that last Contract Year. The request shall be resolved by use of the dispute resolution
procedures stated in the contract. '

2. Costof Water
The CostofWater The Cost of Water shall be as defined as meaning the actual price per one thousand gallons paid
Authority to the City of Corpus Christi for water received by the Authority under the Corpus Chrisiti Water Supply
Agreement during a Service Month. It is expected that the Cost of Water will fluctuate from month to month,
resulting in a corresponding fluctuation in the Water Rate. ‘

GUARANTEED PURCHASE

(A) The City shall purchase a minimum volume of water not to exceed $350,000 annually unless additional

purchases are necessary to supplement the City of Kingsville water requirements and additional money is made
avaibable in the budget for the additional volumes.

1.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and ommissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City obtained general; law enforcement,
error and ommissions; automobile, mobile equipment, real and personal property liability coverage; workers'
compensation and unemployment insurance at a cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by
joining together with other govermental entities in the State to form the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool, (TML), a Self-Funded Pool currently operating as a common risk management
and insurance program for approximately 1,800 members. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its
above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining
through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable
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Q. Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover on its landifll when closed and
perform maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In addition to
operating expenses related to current activities of the landifll, expense provisions ard related liabilities are being
recognized based on the future closure and postclosure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the
landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure costs is based on the
amount of the landfill used during the year. The amount of the liability is based on what it would cost to have all
such closure and postclosure care performed in the current year, and is assigned to periods based on cumulative
landfill use. The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs recorded in the General
Long-Term Debt Account Group at September 30, 2006 is $2,758,948 based on 68.0% usage (filled) of the landfill
through September 30, 2006. it is estimated that an additional $1,286,677 will be recognized as closure and
postclosure care expenses between the date of the balance sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled
to capacity {2011). The estimated total current cost for the jandfill closure and postclosure care of $249,136 is
based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, faciiities, and services required to close, monitor, and
maintain the landfill were acquired as of September 30, 2006. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure
care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

R. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

Because the utility system‘fund is a segment and is reported as a major fund in the fund financial statement,
segment disclosures herein are not reported.

S. Cash and investments

Because the utility system fund is a segment and is reported as a major fund in the fund financial statement,
segment disclosures herein are not reported.

T. Non-Budgeted Funds
The Federal and State Grant Funds and Capital Projects Fund adopted project - length budgets. The Police
Forfeiture Fund and Other Special Revenues Fund budgets were not adopted nor were there any special

commission action taken with regard to these funds.

U. Prior Period Adiustment

During the course of the year, the City identified necessary corrections to their capital asset records for items not
properly recorded and adjustments to the accumulated depreciation.  These corrections resulted in a prior period
adjustment as follows:

Governmental Activities $ (313,923)
Business Type Activities 580,029
$ 266,106
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE ———
GENERAL FUND Page 2 of 7
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

EFOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Ac_tqal (Negative)

Sanitation Services:

Garbage Fees 2,500,000 2,500,000 (135,989)
Landfill Fees 35,000 35,000 425919
Miscellaneous 16,000 16,000 (11,704)
Total Sanitation Services 2,551,000 2,551,000 278,226
Total Charges for Services 2,875,900 2,875,900 335,582
Fines and Forfeits:
Court Fines 283,000 283,000 145,628
Minor Fines 1,500 1,500 (736)
Collection of State Taxes 13,900 13,900 7,287
Other Court Fines 15,100 15,100 997
Total Fines and Forfeits 313,500 313,500 153,176
Interest and Miscellaneous:
Interest from Investments 60,000 60,000 103,896
Auction Revenue 15,000 15,000 18,497
Sale of City Publications 1,150 1 150 (795)
Sale of Recycle ltem 16,000 16,000 1,008
Miscellaneous 24,000 24,000 (30,439)
Total Interest and Miscellaneous 116,150 116,150 92,167
Gain or Loss on Sale of Property 200 200 {200}
Donations - - 2,890
Federal and state grants - - 753
Total Revenues 10,575,086 10,575,086 1,045,787
Expenditures:
City Adrﬁinistration Department
City Commission:
Personal Services 52,146 49,348 1,417
Supplies 2,750 1,374 137
Services 34,100 42,260 7.481
Total City Commission 88,996 92,982 9,035
City Manager: .
Personal Services 169,916 168,150 17,111
Supplies 3,800 4,800 972
Services 10,000 10,866 2,001
Total City Manager 183,816 183,816 20,084
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GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Purchasing:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services

Total Purchasing

Computer Operations:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Debt Service
Capital Qutlay

Total Computer Operations
Total Management Services Department
Legal Department

Personal Services
Supplies
Services

Total Legal Department
Urban Development Department

Planning:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Building

Total Planning

Permits and Licenses:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance

Total Permits and Licenses

Litter Abatement:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Building

Total Litter Abatement

EXHIBIT B-1
Page 4 of 7

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
86,217 85786 81,715 4,071
3,825 3,825 337G 446
9,000 11,916 8,61 5,302
99,042 101,527 9,819
35,460 36,060 869
4,350 30,020 6,785
50,626 42,692 10,073
1,550 1,550 222
33,522 13,886 -
-- - (6,690)
125,508 124,208 11,259
772,141 774,626 85,382
118,240 120,131 2,078
2,000 906 29
33,600 50,415 3,596
153,840 171,452 5,703
317,044 83,229 8,617
9,300 3,425 365
14,450 11,717 5,004
1,200 - -
15,000 - -~
356,994 98,371 13,986
- 190,140 35,271
- 3,725 1,049
- 4,025 1,071
- 1,300 427
- 199,190 37,818
- 43,675 10,357
- 2,450 740
- 3,750 2,624
- 1,050 507
- 8,508 3,655
- 59,433 17,883
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GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Garage:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance

Total Garage

Sanitation:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance

Total Sanitation

Street:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Building
Capital Qutlay

Total Street

Train Depot:
Supplies
Services
Building

Total Train Depot

Landfill:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Building

Total Landfill

Recycling Center:
Personal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Building

Total Recycling Center

Total Public Works Department

EXHIBIT B-1
Page 6 of 7
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final (Negative)
262,545 281,099 11,125
12,700 12,394 797 -
5,150 5,450 492
2,750 2,700 201
283,145 301,643 12,615
632,613 639,173 16,574
79,200 102,421 (72,115}
8,400 8,251 870
76,500 106,594 2,575
796,713 856,439 (52,096)
699,804 677,588 112,924,
49,300 78,100 (355)
272,000 263,816 (9,279)
48,500 53,500 372
96,800 93,400 (188,402}
- - (303,161)
1,166,404 1,166,404 (387,901)
500 74 1
- 18,851 334
20,000 3,975 3,076
20,500 23,0000 3,411
259,216 249,633 3,534
61,200 79,179 (2,394)
93,500 93,849 6,086
20,500 25,500 2,198
4,500 3,352 437
438,916 451,513 9,861
80,232 80,062 334
1,675 1,375 331
10,670 13,730 1,697
560 800 134
1,000 1,000 47
94,077 96,967 2,543
2,942,959 3,039,170 (395,746)
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Actuarial

Acturial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (a) {b) (b-a) (arb) {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/03 20,101,029 § 23,978,374 3,877,345 83.8% § 7,748,043 50.0%
12/31/04 . 19,340,981 23,590,386 4,249,405 82.0% 7,445,582 57.1%
12/31/05 20,681,659 25,342,844 4,661,185 81.6% 7,433,342 62.7%
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS

Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes
Due from:
Other governments:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Bank overdraft
Due to:
Other funds
Other governments
Deferred revenues
Total Liabilities

Equity:
Fund balances:
Reserved for capital outlay
Unreserved, undesignated
Total equity

Total

Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental

Revenue Projects Funds (See

Funds Fund Exhibit A-3)
125,148 - $ 125,148
22,198 - 22,198
70,278 - 70,278
- 501,582 501,582
L 501582 % 719,206
35,088 - $ 35,088
- 157,885 157,885
134,833 - 134,833
38,778 -~ 38,778
208,699 157,886 366,584
- 343,697 343,697
8,925 - 8,925
8,925 343,697 352,622

501,582

719206
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenue:
Taxes $
Fines and forfeitures
nterest and miscellaneous
Federal and state grants
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government and administration
Public Safety
Public works
Tourism
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances/equity, October 1
Fund balances/equity, September 30

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds (See
Funds Fund Exhibit A-5)
290,697 $ - $ 290,697
802 - 802
- 25,007 25,007
173,383 - 173,383
464,882 25,007 489,889
10,206 - 10,206
127,619 - 127,619
46,566 60,425 106,991
290,697 - 290,697
475,088 60,425 535,513
(10,206) (35,418) (45,624)
19,131 379,115 398,246 -
T TBEZS % BA3S97 % 352822,
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Tourism
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 27,969
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Taxes 22,198
Due from:

Other governments: -
o TotalAsssts 0 EE

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Bank overdraft $ -
Due to:
Other governments 50,167
Deferred revenues -

Total Liabilities 50,167

Equity:
Fund balances:
Unreserved, undesignated -
Total equity -

tal Liabilities and Equity

73

Federal
Grants

$ 85,299

35,190

81,861
34,142
116,003

4,486
4,486




$. ... 44603

Other
State Special
Grants Revenues
9,515 $ 2,365

35,088 -

35,088 $ -

2,805 -
4,636 -

42,529 , -

2,074 ' 2,365
2,074 2,365
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Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See

" Exhibit C-1)

125,148
22,198

70,278

35,088

134,833
38,778

208,699

8,925
8,925

pAT624



State
Grants

10,206
9,556
35,088

p——

(10,206)

Other
Special
Revenues

76

EXHIBIT C-4

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds {See
Exhibit C-2)

290,697
802
173,383

464,882

10,206
127,619
46,566
290,697
475,088

(10,206)

19,131




CITY OF KINGSVILLE

FEDERAL GRANTS FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures
Federal grants

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Public works
Public safety

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Fund balances/equity, October 1

EXHIBIT C-6
Current
Project Prior Year Total To
Authorization Years Actual Date

-- - 3 802 802
550,371 324,142 128,739 452,881
550,371 324,142 129,541 453,683
346,938 318,497 11,478 328,975
203,423 5,645 118,063 123,708
550,371 324,142 129,541 453,683
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT C-8
DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues: T

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 1,388,569 $ 1,388,569 1,430,116 $ 41,547

Interest from Investments - - 23777 23,777
Total Revenues 1,388,569 1,388,569 65,324
Expenditures:

Principal retired 960,000 960,000 50,000

Interest 424,569 424,569 48,538

Paying agent fees 4,000 4,000 1,750
Total Expenditures 1,388,569 1,388,569 Y 88“; ; 100,288

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures - - 165,612 165,612
Fund balances/equity, October 1 108,402 108,402 108,402 -
Fund balances/equity, September 30~~~ o Lo § 108402 § 108402 % 274014 % 165;612

80



CITY OF KINGSVILLE

C. O. SERIES 2001

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenues:
Interest from Investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Public Works

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

Bond Proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balancesfequity, October 1
Fund balancesiequity, September 30

EXHIBIT C-9

Project Prior Currént Total To

Authorization Years Year Date
- 73,582 § 25007 $ 98,589
- 73,582 25,007 98,589
3,305,000 2,999,467 60,425 3,059,892
3,305,000 2,999 467 60,425 3,059,892
(3,305,000) (2,925,885) (35,418) (2,961,303)
3,305,000 3,305,000 - 3,305,000
3,305,000 3,305,000 - 3,305,000
- 379,115 (35,418) 343,697
CEErnagT L BASROT IR

81



CITY OF KINGSVILLE EXHIBIT C-10
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Balance Balance
October 1, , September 30,
2005 Additions Deductions

Corporation Court Cash Bond Account Fund
ASSETS
Cash & Investments
Total Assets

8,476 § 164,399 § 146,968
8,476 § 164,399 $ 146,968

©3 H

LIABILITIES
Cash Bonds Held
Total Liabilities

8,476 $ 164,399 $ 146,968 L 05807

8,476 § 164,399 § 146,968

&3 A

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS:

ASSETS
Cash & Investments $ 8,476 $ 164,399 § 146,968
5 Total Assets T ST 1643998 . 146968 8.

LIABILITIES
CashBondskHeldw ; S ; 5 8,476 $ 164,399 $ 146,968
T TotalLisbilies s BATe S | 1043998 16968

5,907
STy
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

CONVENTION & VISTORS BUREAU
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenues:
Contracted Services
Interest from Investments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Perscnal Services
Supplies
Services
Maintenance
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Fund balances/equity, October 1
Fund balances/equity, September 30

EXHIBIT C-11

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
265200 $ 265,200 § $ (12,018)
- - 485
- - 2,584
265,200 265,200 (8,969)
119,656 119,656 836
7,150 7.150 (2,328)
132,744 132,744 13,704
1,550 1,550 464
4,100 4,100 780
265,200 265,200 13,456
- - 4,487
99,851 ‘99,851 --

Tooagsl % e 0985 f“'r,ff‘$'iif Lo 44BT
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PATRICK L. MOORE, CPA

Certified Public Accountant

P. O. Box 1819 e Fredericksburg, Texas 78624
(830)992-1888 e Telecopier: (830) 990-2316
e-mail address: pim@pimepa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

City Commission

City of Kingsville

P.O. Box 1458
Kingsville, Texas 78364

Members of the City Commission:

| have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City
of Kingsville as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City of
Kingsville's basic financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated April 20, 2007. | conducted
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting
in planning and performing my audit, | considered City of Kingsville's internal control over financial reporting in

order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinicns on the financial
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. My consideration of
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by empioyees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. | noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that | considered to be material weaknesses.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Kingsville's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, | performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, | do not express such an opinion. The results
of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs as items 06-1 and 06-2.

| also noted other matters that | reported to management of City of Kingsville in a separate letter dated April
20, 2007.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: n ifi

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Reportable condition(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X  None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

2. Federal Awards

A Single Audit was not required in the current year.

B. Financial Statement Findings

06-1 State Compliance - Budget

The General Fund Budgetary Comparison contains excess expenditures over appropriations.  The
adopted budget should be amended as necessary throughout the year. Our recommendation is that the
City review bugeting procedures in order to insure that necessary amendments are made in a timely
manner.

06-2 State Compliance - Unsecured Deposits
The City's deposits were not fully secured at the date of the highest cash balance. We recommend that
the City develop policies and procedures to monitor cash balances on a daily basis to ensure that

sufficient securities are pledged to secure those deposits at all times.

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

06-3 Federal Compliance - Cash Managment, Homeland Security Grant CFDA #97.042

The City submitted a reimbursement request in March, 2006, and received the funding in the same month.
However, due to a budget amendment and re-bidding, the amount has not yet been disbursed. We
recommend that the City more carefully monitor the reporting process to ensure that funds will be
disbursed within the required period after receipt. ‘
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

06-1 State Compliance - Budget

The City will stress the importance of the budgeting process, and strive t0 improve procedures to insure that
the budget will be amended in a timely manner. Mark Rushing, Finance Director, will work toward these
goals in the 2007 Fiscal Year.

06-2 State Compliance - Unsecured Deposits

The City will implement policies and procedures necessary to ensure that deposits are monitored on a daily
basis and adequate securities are pledged to cover those deposits. Mark Rushing, Finance Director, will
coordinate those efforts.

06-3 Federal Compliance - Cash Mahagement, Homeland Security Grant, CFDA #97.042

The Citywillimplementany policies and procedures necessary to ensure that cash from federal grantsis
properly disbursed within the required period. Mark Rushing, Finance Director, will coordinate these efforts.
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Statistical Section
This part of the City of Kingsville's comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial

statements, note disclosures, and required suppiementary information says about the
city's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules eontain trend information to help the reader understand how the
city's financial performance and well-being have changed over time

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the city's ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional
debt in the future

Demographic and Economic information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the city's financial activities take place
and to help make comparisons over time with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the city's operations and resources to

help to reader understand how the city's financial information relates to the
services the city provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The city implemented Statement 34
in 2003 schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning that

year.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT,
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government
invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets

SCHEDULE 1
Fiscal Year
2006 2005 2004 2003
7,190,499 5,751,650 $ 4472,660 % 1,810,325
2,314,775 2,325,562 2,804,822 4,954,300
1,085,412 1,150,966 754,079 379,136
10,590,686 §,228,178 $ 8,031,561 $ 7,143,761
4,315,474 4,033,396 * § 3,321,566 § 2,419,270
2,174,298 2,528,455 2,293,034 3,934,520
113,403 (1,908,572) (1,117,171) (549,286)
6,603,175 4,653,279 $ 4,497,429 3% 5,804,504
11,505,973 9,785,0‘46 $ 7,794,226 % 4,229,595
4,489,073 4,854,017 5,097,856 8,888,820
1,198,815 (757,606) (363,092) (170,150)
17,193,861 13,881,457 $ 12,528,990 $ 12,948,265

Note: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. The data in this

table is extracted from Exhibit A-1.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 2
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS, LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS (Continued)
Fiscal Year
2006 2005 2004 2003
Net (Expense)/Revenue)
Governmental activities 3 (9,384,431) $ (9,158,912) § (9,791,934) § (9,668,326)
Business-type activities 2,697,635 1,733,709 1,576,009 1,482,555
Total primary government net expenses $ (6,686,796) $ (7,425,203) % (8,215,925) $ (8.185,771)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Taxes
Property taxes $ 4,012,188 $ 3,733,214 3 3,536,180 $ 3,732,215
Franchise taxes 1,012,220 1,026,424 1,038,640 980,307
Sales taxes 3,795,341 3,390,122 3,032,676 2,899,006
Other taxes 39,183 39,132 27,952 30,606
Unrestricted grants and contributions - - -
Payment in lieu of taxes . 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Investment earnings 170,314 130.266 90,738 84,724
Miscellaneous (loss) (30,052) 119 (41,966) 26,204
Transfers 1,961,699 1,936,252 1,371,639 1,000,000
Total governmental activities 11,060,893 10,355,529 9,155,859 8,853,062
Business-type activities
Investment earnings 603,158 353,232 26,406 35,104
Qther 30,775 5,161 18,433 -
Transfers . (1,961,699) (1,936,252) (1,371,639) 7 (1,000,000)
Total business-type activities (1,327,766) (1,577,859) (1,326,800) (964,896)
Total primary government $ 9,733,127 $ 8,7776870 § 7,829,059 § 7,888,166
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities (loss) $ 1676642 $ 1,196,617 $ (636,075) § (815,264)
Business-type activities 1,369,869 155,850 249,209 517,659
Total primary government (loss) $ 3,046,511 $ 1,352,467 § (386,866) $ (297 ,605)

Notes: The city began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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SCHEDULE 3

Fiscal Year

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

426,950 % 422840 $ 3,380,142 § 2,226,519 $ 1,589,496 $ 1,035938
1,819,367 2,006,541 2,324,845 2,972,504 4,032,056 5,936,909

2246317 $ 2,429,381 $ 5704987 $ 5199023 $ 5621552 § 6,972,847

o $ - $ 48,188 % 7,844 § 8,699 § 9,331
973,149 609,989 651,579 33,559 41,016 332,879
2,611,845 772,264 487,518 626,779 379,118 343,697
408,614 326,450 364,499 69,062 108,402 274,014

3,093,608 $ 1,708,713 § _ 1551784 $ 737,244 $ 537,233 % 958,921
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SCHEDULE 4

Fiscal Year
2001 2002 - 2003 2004 2005 2006

$ 3,898,689 § 3,788,364 § 3,816,412 § 3,569,222 § 3,804,469 § 4,141,313

4,079,631 4,301,650 4,175,064 4,463,397 4,743,894 5,137,441
236,243 179,355 592,442 803,815 226,716 172,814
1,187,955 707,762 1,167,684 803,192 1,163,398 1,844,000
2,580,039 2,852,929 2,840,098 3,080,519 3,128,451 3,211,482

- 172,419 40,500 3,029 240 -
657,660 419,203 968,461 709,566 455,182 174,136
301,265 138,621 118,869 127,253 202,335 282,200

. - - 176,146 3,299 2,890

12,941,482 12,560,303 13,719,530 13,736,139 13,727,984 14,966,276
2,096,895 2,228,427 2,410,041 2,047,294 2,357,112 2,398,046
5,932,293 6,077,785 7,409,439 6,265,404 6,644,503 6,703,918
2,838,705 3,096,539 4,738,879 4,113,344 3,472,610 3,561,348
675,667 721,590 687,404 674,392 672,019 655,411
228,626 255,405 265,401 264,132 288,215 290,697

74,831 - . . - -
1,312 2,616 71,161 248,936 60,258 2,532

723,641 1,822,528 - - - -

270,160 366,808 316,527 462,722 411,195 378,281

1,015,000 1,045,000 925,000 1,045,000 885,000 910,000

13,857,130 15,616,698 16,823,852 16,021,224 14,790,912 14,900,233
(915,648) (3,056,395) (3,104,322) (2,285,085) (1,062,928) 66,043
148,100 - . . - -
3,305,000 . 5,223,000 - b 450,000
699,689 1,000,000 1,107,971 1,131,652 1,340,861 1,338,041

- - (107.971) (134,786) (56,280) (88,041)

4,152,789 1,000,000 6,223,000 996,866 1,284,581 1,700,000

$ 3237441 § (2056395 $ 3118678 § _ (1.288219) § 221653 $ 1,766,043
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(RATE PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

City Direct Rates

General

Obligation Total

Fiscal Basic Debt Direct

Year Rate Service Rate
1997 0.38324 % 0.34676 $ 0.73000
1998 0.35310 0.37690 0.73000
1999 0.37419 0.32588 0.70007
2000 0.35939 0.32208 0.68145
2001 0.35193 0.34952 0.70145
2002 0.43650 0.26495 0.70145
2003 0.44389 0.25128 0.69527
2004 0.42980 0.25128 0.69527
2005 0.44924 0.25272 0.70196
2006 0.45633 0.25367 0.71000

Source: Kleberg County Appraisal District
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SCHEDULE 6
Overlapping Rates

School

District County STWA
147 § 067 $ 0.14
1.50 0.67 0.14
1.50 0.68 0.14
1.50 0.72 0.13
1.50 0.69 0.12
1.62 0.69 0.12
1.63 0.63 0.06
1.59 0.61 0.06
1.60 0.61 0.06
1.45 0.61 0.06



CITY OF KINGSVILLE
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHEDULE 8

Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date
Ended Levied for Percent Subsequent Percent
September 30, the Year Amount of Levy Years(1) Amount of Levy
1997 2,781,089 § 2,638,554 94.9% 132,431 2,770,985 99.6%
1998 2,850,450 2,720,721 95.4% 116,019 2,836,740 99.5%
1999 2,830,648 2,672,191 94.4% 145420 2,817,611 99.5%
2000 3,003,723 2,825,009 94.1% 159,529 2,984,538 99.4%
2001 3,249,432 3,060,005 94.2% 167,204 3,227,209 99.3%
2002 3,391,973 3,193,026 94.1% 171,862 3,364,888 99.2%
2003 3,429,931 3,237,999 94.4% 154,495 3,392,484 98.9%
2004 3,447,050 3,250,187 94.3% 130,553 3,380,740 98.1%
2005 3,636,135 3,455,881 95.0% 91,377 3,547,258 97.6%
2006 3,886,220 3,726,279 95.9% - 3,726,279 95.9%

Source: Kleberg County Appraisal District

Notes: These accounts represent cash collections and

Appraisal District.

(1) Information required by GASB #44 diff
represent total delinquent amounts receive
Data for delinguent tax collections by levy year is not av

any adjustments tc the tax roll per the Kleberg County

ors from information reported. Collections in subsegquent years

99

d during the fiscal year, regardless of the fiscal year of the tax levy.
ailable for the Kleberg County Tax Assessor's Office.



Calendar Year

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
5,492 1,147 748 % 358 888

4797 - - 299 -
579 1,809 91 353 69
23,025 20,717 8,846 13,726 7,331
14,472 12,100 7,537 8,028 2,802
16,668 16,456 15,054 23,744 187
134,932 124,134 137,082 124,437 129,820
25,801 19,350 19,257 13,723 15,611
225766 195,713 188,615 $ 184,668 156,708

1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
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SCHEDULE 11

Total Percentage
Primary of Personal Per
Govermnment Income Capital

7,100,000 1.90% $§  269.73
8,655,000 2.04% 321.09
7,495,000 1.85% 296.53
7,650,000 1.71% 299.12
9,967,657 2.06% 388.91
8,785,118 1.66% 337.41
14,161,177 2.59% 537.81
12,965,852 2.34% 490.91
23,588,970 4.12% 890.86

22,160,000 3.83% 835.22
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Governmental Unit
Debt repaid with property taxes
Kingsville ISD
Kleberg County
South Texas Water Authority
Subtotal, overlapping debt

City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

SCHEDULE 13

Estimated

Share of

Estimated Direct and

Debt Percentage Overlapping
QOutstanding Applicable Debt

8,978,000 100% 8,978,000
1,070,000 50% 535,000
- N/A 535,000
10,048,000
8,978,000

19,026,000

Sources: Taxable value data used to estimated applicable percentages porvided by the County Property Appraiser.

Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overtapping governments that is borne by the

residents and businesses of Kingsville. This process recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue
and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into

account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident-and therefore responsible for repaying the

debt-of each overlapping government,

106



$

$

SCHEDULE 14

Fiscal Year
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
115,807,187 $ 120,912,493 § 123,782,082 $§ 125,781,620 §$ 129498770 $§ 136,836,546
4,527,295 6,868,550 11,118,807 10,378,938 9,454,598 9,315,986
111279802 $ 114043943 $ 112663275 $ 115402682 § 120.044172 $§ 127,520,560
3.91% 5.68% 8.98% 8.25% 7.30% 6.81%

Legal Debt Margin Caiculation for Fiscal Year 2006

Assessed Value $ 547,346,185
Debt limit (25% of assessed value) 136,836,546
Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds 9,590,000

Less: Amount set aside for
repayment of general

obligation debt _ (274014)
Total net debt applicable to limit 9,315,886
Legal debt margin $ 127,520,560
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 16
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS,
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Personal Per Education
Income Capita Level in
Calendar (thousands Personal Median Years of School Unemployment
Year Population of dollars) Income Age Schooling Enrollment Rate
1997 26,323 373,576 14,192 28.8 N/A 5136 6.4%
1998 26,955 424 757 15,758 28.9 N/A 5067 6.8%
1999 25,276 405,831 16,056 275 N/A 4996 6.6%
2000 25,575 446,207 17 447 26.0 12.3 4819 5.9%
2001 25,631 483,965 18,882 29.2 N/A 4760 6.5%
2002 26,037 529,072 20,320 28.4 N/A 4644 6.2%
2003 26,331 546,289 20,747 28.3 N/A 4620 6.2%
2004 26,412 554,705 21,002 28.3 N/A 4541 6.0%
2005 26,479 572,794 21,632 28.3 N/A 4339 5.0%
2006 26,532 578,636 21,809 28.4 N/A 4246 4.2%

Sources: City of Kingsville
Kingsville Independent School District
Chamber of Commerce

Notes: Population, median age, and educationa
quarter of the calendar year. Personal income in
an adjusted yearly average. School enrollment is based on t

he census at the start of the school year.

U.S. Census Bureau for population 25 years or older, some years not available.
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CITY OF KINGSVILLE SCHEDULE 18

FULL-TIME-EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM,
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of September 30,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

City Commission 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
General Government 33 33 33 34 37 37 36 37 37 37
Fire 33 33 35 33 33 33 33 33 33 30
Health 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Library 8 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Police 63 63 63 64 64 63 67 67 67 67
Public Works 97 g7 96 98 110 96 97 99 98 g9
Task Force 11 11 12 12 16 15 12 13 13 12
Total 261 264 266 268 287 271 272 276 275 272

Source: City of Kingsville

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2080 hours per year (including vacation and sick leave).
Full-time equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total labor hours by 2080.
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SCHEDULE 19

114

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

CNIA 2063 2186 2821 2523
N/A N/A N/A N/A 1337
2653 2433 1838 1902 1791
76 37 29 16 70
4967 3947 2829 2449 4334
2028 2113 1980 1883 1973
405 359 338 363 424
0 189 374 376 234
59.03 68.28 79.74 97.13 76.03

1.13 1.02 0.39 1.05
N/A N/A 3.52 - 4.43 3.20
N/A N/A 21000 22000 20000
60205 58300 59973 51648 63086
47690 48306 51784 51791 53209
48 38 80 45 45
439 377 334 415 537
4047 3412 3184 3184 3578
5753 4615 4420 4987 4955
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000




Fiscal Year

2002 2003 2004 ‘2005 2006
1 1 1 1 1
51 63 63 54 53
2 2 2 2
12 15 18 18 18
104 104 104 105.25 105.52
N/A N/A N/A 546 554
4 4 4 4 4
195 195 195 195 195
9 9 9 9 9
12 12 12 12 12
12 12 12 12 12
2 2 2 2 2
113 113 113 114.72 115.72
667 674 681 686 692
9594 9594 9594 9594 9679
90.9 90.9 91.11 92.4 94.6
15.5 15.5 15.5 15.77 15.98
4000 4000 4000 4000 4000
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